
CITY OF ANNAPOLIS 
REGULAR MEETING OF THE CITY COUNCIL 

February 11, 2013, 7:00 p.m. 
 

 
Call to Order Mayor Cohen 
Invocation  Alderman Arnett 
Pledge of Allegiance Mayor Cohen 
Roll Call  City Clerk Watkins-Eldridge 
Approval of Agenda  

   
CITY COUNCIL CITATIONS 

Martha Wood Leadership Award Mayor Cohen 
“Paint it Red” – Heart Awareness Month Mayor Cohen 

 
PETITIONS, REPORTS AND COMMUNICATIONS 

Approval of Journal Proceedings Regular Meeting January 14, 2013 
  Special Meeting January 28, 2013  
Reports by Committees 
Comments by the General Public 

A person appearing before the City Council with a petition, report or communication  
shall be limited to a presentation of not more than three minutes. 

 
PUBLIC HEARING 

O-1-13 Technical Corrections to the Annapolis City Code - Exempt Service – 
For the purpose of making certain technical corrections to the Annapolis City 
Code in regards to the exempt service.  

LEGISLATIVE HISTORY 
Legislative referrals are subject to City Council action at the time of introduction  

and are reflected in the City Council’s adopted minutes 

First Reading Public Hearing Fiscal Impact Note 90 Day Rule 

1/14/13 2/11/13 1/29/13 4/14/13 

Referred to Referral Date Meeting Date Action Taken 

Rules and City Gov’t 1/14/13   

Finance 1/14/13   

 
 

LEGISLATIVE ACTION 
CHARTER AMENDMENTS, ORDINANCES AND RESOLUTIONS – SECOND READER 

CA-2-12  Municipal Elections Coinciding with State of Maryland Elections in 2018 
and Onward – For the purpose of amending the Charter of the City of 
Annapolis to establish the dates of the primary and general elections to 
coincide with the State of Maryland in 2018 and extending the length of time 
in office for the incoming City Council in December 2013 an additional year to 
December 2018 in order to facilitate this transition period.  Proposed to be 
postponed. 

Page 1



Regular Meeting of the City Council 
February 11, 2013                                                                                      Page 2 

 

LEGISLATIVE HISTORY 
Legislative referrals are subject to City Council action at the time of introduction  

and are reflected in the City Council’s adopted minutes 

First Reading Public Hearing Fiscal Impact Note 90 Day Rule 

9/24/12 10/22/12 10/13/12 12/21/12 

Referred to Referral Date Meeting Date Action Taken 

Rules and City Gov’t 9/24/12 
11/13/12 

2/4/13 

Favorable motion 
failed 

No action 

 

CA-3-12  City Finance Requirements – For the purpose of amending the Charter of 
the City of Annapolis to establish an unrestricted fund balance as part of the 
annual budget process, authorizing an Audit Committee; and setting a time 
line for the Finance Director to provide the Comprehensive Annual Financial 
Report to the City Council.  Proposed to be postponed.  

LEGISLATIVE HISTORY 
Legislative referrals are subject to City Council action at the time of introduction  

and are reflected in the City Council’s adopted minutes 

First Reading Public Hearing Fiscal Impact Note 90 Day Rule 

9/24/12 10/22/12 10/13/12 12/21/12 

Referred to Referral Date Meeting Date Action Taken 

Rules and City Gov’t 9/24/12 
11/13/12 

2/4/13 
Favorable w/amd. 

Unfavorable 

Finance 1/14/13 2/14/13 Postponed 

 

O-26-12  Revisions to the Zoning Map Amendment Process – For the purpose of 
amending Chapter 21.34 (Zoning Map Amendments) of the Annapolis City 
Code by establishing new procedures for local zoning map amendments, 
sectional zoning map amendments, and comprehensive zoning map 
amendments. 

LEGISLATIVE HISTORY 
Legislative referrals are subject to City Council action at the time of introduction  

and are reflected in the City Council’s adopted minutes 

First Reading Public Hearing Fiscal Impact Note 180 Day Rule 

7/23/12 11/26/12 9/14/12 1/21/13 

Referred to Referral Date Meeting Date Action Taken 

Rules and City Gov’t 7/23/12 
1/8/13 
2/4/13 

Favorable w/ amd. 
Favorable w/ amd. 

Planning Commission 7/23/12 10/4/12 Favorable 

 

Page 2



Regular Meeting of the City Council 
February 11, 2013                                                                                      Page 3 

 
O-42-12 Residency of Certain Department Directors - For the purpose of amending 

the residency requirement for certain department directors by amending 
Section 2.04.060 of the Code of the City of Annapolis, 2012 Edition. 

LEGISLATIVE HISTORY 
Legislative referrals are subject to City Council action at the time of introduction  

and are reflected in the City Council’s adopted minutes 

First Reading Public Hearing Fiscal Impact Note 90 Day Rule 

11/26/12 12/10/12 12/13/12 02/24/13 

Referred to Referral Date Meeting Date Action Taken 

Rules and City 
Government 

11/26/12 
1/8/13 
2/4/13 

Postponed 
Favorable w/ amd. 

 
 
R-1-13  Filing of Grant Application with the Mass Transit Administration – For 

the purpose of authorizing the filing of an application with the Mass Transit 
Administration of the Maryland Department of Transportation for a Sections 
5303, 5304, 5307, 5309, 5310, 5311, 5316, and/or 5317 grants under the 
Federal Transit Act. 

 
LEGISLATIVE HISTORY 

Legislative referrals are subject to City Council action at the time of introduction  
and are reflected in the City Council’s adopted minutes 

First Reading Public Hearing Fiscal Impact Note 90 Day Rule 

1/14/13 N/A 1/24/13 4/14/13 

Referred to Referral Date Meeting Date Action Taken 

Transportation 1/14/13 N/A N/A 

Transportation Board 1/14/13 N/A N/A 

 
 

RESOLUTIONS – FIRST READER 
R-3-13 Advocating for the City of Annapolis to be Named as the Home for a 

National Continental Congress Center – For the purpose of expressing the 
sense of the City Council that the City of Annapolis be named as the home 
for a National Continental Congress Center. 

LEGISLATIVE HISTORY 
Legislative referrals are subject to City Council action at the time of introduction  

and are reflected in the City Council’s adopted minutes 

First Reading Public Hearing Fiscal Impact Note 90 Day Rule 

2/11/13   5/10/13 

Referred to Referral Date Meeting Date Action Taken 

Economic Matters 2/11/13   

Historic Markers 2/11/13   

Page 3



Regular Meeting of the City Council 
February 11, 2013                                                                                      Page 4 

 

 
R-7-13 Wayfinding and Signage Master Plan – For the purpose of adopting the 

Draft Wayfinding and Signage Master Plan as an addendum to the 2009 
Annapolis Comprehensive Plan.  

LEGISLATIVE HISTORY 
Legislative referrals are subject to City Council action at the time of introduction  

and are reflected in the City Council’s adopted minutes 

First Reading Public Hearing Fiscal Impact Note 90 Day Rule 

2/11/13   5/10/13 

Referred to Referral Date Meeting Date Action Taken 

Rules and City Gov’t 2/11/13   

Transportation 2/11/13   

Planning Commission N/A 1/3/13 Favorable 

Transportation Board 2/11/13   

 
 
R-8-13 Expressing Support for House Bill 145 and Senate Bill 244 – Refillable 

Container Alcoholic Beverage License in the City of Annapolis – For the 
purpose of expressing the Annapolis City Council’s support of House Bill 145 
and Senate Bill 244 before the General Assembly regarding an alcoholic 
beverage license component for refillable containers for holders of Class A 
(package goods) and Class D (taverns) alcoholic beverage licenses. 

LEGISLATIVE HISTORY 
Legislative referrals are subject to City Council action at the time of introduction  

and are reflected in the City Council’s adopted minutes 

First Reading Public Hearing Fiscal Impact Note 90 Day Rule 

2/11/13   5/10/13 

Referred to Referral Date Meeting Date Action Taken 

Economic Matters 2/11/13   

Alcoholic Beverage 
Control Board 

2/11/13   

 
 

R-9-13  Municipal Elections Coinciding with State of Maryland Elections – For 
the purpose of expressing the sense of the Annapolis City Council that the 
City elections for Mayor and Aldermen and Alderwomen should be adjusted 
to coincide with State gubernatorial elections, and that the City should 
request that the State authorize, by executive or legislative action as 
appropriate, inclusion of the City elections on the same ballot used for State 
of Maryland gubernatorial elections.  

LEGISLATIVE HISTORY 
Legislative referrals are subject to City Council action at the time of introduction  

and are reflected in the City Council’s adopted minutes 

Page 4



Regular Meeting of the City Council 
February 11, 2013                                                                                      Page 5 

 

First Reading Public Hearing Fiscal Impact Note 90 Day Rule 

2/11/13   5/10/13 

Referred to Referral Date Meeting Date Action Taken 

Rules and City Gov’t 2/11/13   

 
 

BUSINESS AND MISCELLANEOUS 
1. Budget revision 

 
 

UPCOMING CITY COUNCIL EVENTS 
Work Session: Thursday, February 21, 2013, 1:30 – 4:30 p.m. City Council Chambers 

Special Meeting: Monday, February 25, 2013, 7:00 p.m. City Council Chambers 
 

Page 5



Page 6



Page 7



Page 8



Page 9



Page 10



Page 11



Page 12



Page 13



Page 14



Page 15



Page 16



Page 17



Page 18



Page 19



Page 20



Page 21



Page 22



Page 23



Page 24



Page 25



Page 26



Page 27



	 	 	 
Jessica Cowles  
Legislative and Policy Analyst    
City of Annapolis Office of Law  
E)   JCCowles@annapolis.gov 
P)   410‐263‐1184 
F)   410‐268‐3916 

February 6, 2013 
 
TO:  The Capital Legal Notices: legalad@capgaz.com  
FROM:  Jessica Cowles, Legislative and Policy Analyst 
RE:  Notice of Public Hearing 
PUBLISH:  Please publish on: Sunday, February 10, 2013 and Monday, February 11, 2013 
 
Please send bill and certificate of publication to the City of Annapolis Office of Law, 93 Main Street, 3rd 
Floor, Annapolis, MD 21401. 

 
****************************************** 

NOTICE OF ANNAPOLIS CITY COUNCIL PUBLIC HEARING 
Notice is hereby given that the Annapolis City Council will hold a public hearing on Monday, February 11, 
2013 at 7:00 p.m., in City Council Chambers, 160 Duke of Gloucester Street, Annapolis, for a public 
hearing on: 
 
O-1-13 Technical Corrections to the Annapolis City Code - Exempt Service – For the purpose of 

making certain technical corrections to the Annapolis City Code in regards to the exempt 
service.  

The above legislation on the City Council agenda for public hearing can be viewed on the City=s website 
at: http://www.annapolis.gov/Government/Departments/LawOffice/PendingLegis.aspx  

  

Page 28



CITY COUNCIL OF THE 1 

2 

3 

4 
5 
6 
7 

City of Annapolis 
  

Ordinance No. O-1-13 
 

Sponsors: Mayor Cohen, Alderwoman Finlayson, Alderman Arnett 
 

LEGISLATIVE HISTORY 
Legislative referrals are subject to City Council action at the time of introduction  

and are reflected in the City Council’s adopted minutes 

First Reading Public Hearing Fiscal Impact Note 90 Day Rule 

1/14/13   4/14/13 

Referred to Referral Date Meeting Date Action Taken 

Rules and City Gov’t 1/14/13   

Finance 1/14/13   

 8 
9 

10 

11 
12 

13 
14 
15 
16 

17 

18 

19 

20 
21 
22 

23 
24 

25 
26 

27 
28 
29 
30 
31 
32 

A ORDINANCE concerning 

Technical Corrections to the Annapolis City Code - Exempt Service 

FOR the purpose of making certain technical corrections to the Annapolis City Code in 
regards to the exempt service.  

BY    making technical amendments regarding certain exempt service positions in order to 
reflect the original intent of Ordinance No. O-10-12 Amended, which repealed and re-
enacted with amendments the following portions of the Code of the City of Annapolis, 
2012 Edition: 

 Section 3.08.010  

Section 3.08.030 

 

WHEREAS, Sections 3.08.010 and 3.08.030 of the Code were amended pursuant to 
Ordinance No. O-10-12 Amended, which was adopted by the Annapolis City 
Council on June 4, 2012; 

WHEREAS,  pursuant to Ordinance No. O-10-12 Amended, certain positions were added to 
exempt service and certain positions were eliminated from exempt service;  

WHEREAS, certain technical amendments are necessary to effectuate the original purpose of 
Ordinance O-10-12 Amended. 

 
 
 
 SECTION I: BE IT ESTABLISHED AND ORDAINED BY THE ANNAPOLIS CITY  
COUNCIL that the Code of the City of Annapolis shall be amended to read as follows: 
 

Page 29



CHAPTER 3.08 – EXEMPT SERVICE 1 
2 
3 
4 
5 
6 
7 
8 
9 

10 
11 
12 
13 
14 
15 
16 
17 
18 
19 
20 
21 
22 
23 

 
3.08.010 - Positions included. 
The exempt service includes:  
1.   All the elected officials; 
2.   All department directors; 
3.   City Manager; 
4.   Communications Officer; 
5.   City Attorney; 
6.   Assistant City Attorney; 
7.   Community Relations Specialist; 
8.  Human Services Officer and Ombudsman; 
9.    Administrative Assistant; 
10.  Assistant City Manager; 
11.  Public Information Officer and Quartermaster 
12.  Executive Office Associate; 
13.  Recruitment/[EEO] EMPLOYEE RELATIONS Administrator; 
14.   Deputy Fire Chiefs; and 
15.   Police Major and Captains. 
 
3.08.030 - Salary. 
A. 1.  For purposes of setting annual salaries, the following positions in the exempt service 
are assigned grades in the City's pay plan as indicated:  

Position Grade 
Executive Office Associate  A10 
Recruitment/[EEO] EMPLOYEE RELATIONS Administrator A15 
Communications Officer A18 
Deputy Fire Chief F18 
Human Resources Director A20 
Director of Transportation A20 
[Director of Economic Affairs] [A20] 
Director of Neighborhood and Environmental Programs A20 
[Central Services Officer] [A20] 
Director of Recreation and Parks A20 
City Attorney A20 
Assistant City Attorney A18 
Director of Finance A20 
Director of Planning  A20 
Human Services Officer and Ombudsman A18 
[Development/Events Specialist] [A12] 
Community Relations Specialist A12 
[Boards and Commissions/Council Associate] [A10] 
Administrative Assistant A8 
Assistant City Manager A14 
Public Information Officer and Quartermaster A12 

Page 30



Fire Chief F20 
Police Chief P20 
Police Major P18 
Police Captain P17 
Director of Public Works A20 

 1 
2 
3 
4 
5 
6 
7 
8 
9 

10 
11 
12 
13 
14 
15 
16 
17 
18 
19 
20 
21 
22 
23 
24 
25 
26 
27 
28 
29 
30 
31 
32 
33 
34 
35 
36 
37 
38 
39 
40 
41 
42 
43 
44 

2.  The salary of the City Manager shall be proposed and approved by the council at the 
time of the City Manager’s confirmation hearing.  
 
B. Salary raises: 
1.  Shall be justified by either satisfactory or above satisfactory performance reviews by the 
Mayor and shall be entirely at the Mayor's discretion, with the exception of those positions listed 
in subsection (B)(2) of this section;  
2.  Shall be at the discretion of the Department Director for the following positions: 

i.  Deputy Fire Chiefs, 
ii. Police Captains, 
iii.  Police Major, 
iv.  Recruitment/Employee Relations Administrator, 
v.  Assistant City Attorney[.], 
vi.  EXECUTIVE OFFICE ASSICIATE, 
vii.  COMMUNICATIONS OFFICER, 
viii.  HUMAN SERVICES OFFICER AND OMBUDSMAN, 
ix.  COMMUNITY RELATIONS SPECIALIST 
x.  ADMINISTRATIVE ASSISTANT, 
xi.  ASSISTANT CITY MANAGER, 
xii.  PUBLIC INFORMATION OFFICER AND QUARTERMASTER. 

3.  Shall not be awarded to an individual more frequently than once a year; 
4.  Shall not be for an amount exceeding one pay step in the grade range for the position as set 
in subsection (A)(1) of this section;  
5.  Shall not cause an individual's salary to exceed the maximum salary of the assigned grade. 
 
C. Longevity salary increases awarded to civil service employees shall not be a benefit of 
the exempt service. 
 
D. A City employee appointed to a position specified in subsection (A)(1) of this section 
shall be assigned to a salary in the new pay grade which is at a minimum five percent higher 
than the employee's salary prior to promotion or shall be assigned to the minimum of the new 
grade, whichever is higher. In no case shall the new salary exceed the maximum salary of the 
new grade.  
 
E. For positions other than those specified in subsection (B)(2) of this section, the Mayor 
may make an initial appointment at a salary greater than the first step of the assigned grade. 
The appointment and initial salary is subject to confirmation by the City Council. For those 
positions specified in subsection (B)(2) of this section, appointments made by Department 
Director do not require City Council approval and initial appointments may be made at a salary 
greater than the first step of the assigned grade subject to the availability of funding.  
 
F. The Mayor shall report to the City Council on an annual basis the salaries of all positions 
listed in subsection A of this section, and all increases in salary awarded since the prior report.  

Page 31



 1 

2 
3 
4 
5 
6 
7 

 SECTION II:  AND BE IT FURTHER ESTABLISHED AND ORDAINED BY THE 
ANNAPOLIS CITY COUNCIL that this Ordinance shall take effect from the date of its passage. 
 

ADOPTED this _______ day of _________, __________. 
 
 

ATTEST:  THE ANNAPOLIS CITY COUNCIL 

 BY  

Regina C. Watkins-Eldridge, MMC, City Clerk  Joshua J. Cohen, Mayor 

 8 
9 

10 
11 
12 

 
EXPLANATION 

CAPITAL LETTERS indicate matter added to existing law. 
[brackets] indicate matter stricken from existing law. 

Underlining indicates amendments.  13 

Page 32



O-1-13 
Page 5 

 

 

Policy Report 
 

Ordinance O-1-13 
 

Technical Corrections - Exempt Service 
 
The proposed ordinance would make certain technical corrections to Sections 
3.08.010 and 3.08.030 to the Annapolis City Code, 2012 Edition. These technical 
corrections are necessary to ensure that the Code reflects the original intent of 
Ordinance No. O-10-12 Amended, which was adopted by the Annapolis City 
Council on June 4, 2012.   

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Prepared by Jessica Cowles, Legislative and Policy Analyst in the City of 
Annapolis Office of Law at 410.263.1184 or JCCowles@annapolis.gov and Carol 
Richardson, Legislative and Policy Analyst in the City of Annapolis Office of Law. 
 

Page 33

mailto:JCCowles@annapolis.gov


FISCAL IMPACT NOTE   
 

Legislation No: O-1-13   First Reader Date: 1/14/13 
Note Date:     

 
Legislation Title:  Technical Corrections to the Annapolis City Code – Exempt 
Service 

 
 

Description:  For the purpose of making certain technical corrections to the Annapolis 
City Code in regards to the exempt service. 
 
Analysis of Fiscal Impact:  This legislation produces no fiscal impact because it corrects 
the City Code to current practice. 
 

Page 34



CITY COUNCIL OF THE 1 

2 

3 
4 
5 
6 
7 

City of Annapolis 
 

Charter Amendment No. CA-2-12 
 

Introduced by: Alderman Pfeiffer at the Request of the Charter Revision Commission 
 

LEGISLATIVE HISTORY 
Legislative referrals are subject to City Council action at the time of introduction  

and are reflected in the City Council’s adopted minutes 

First Reading Public Hearing Fiscal Impact Note 90 Day Rule 

9/24/12 10/22/12 10/13/12 12/21/12 

Referred to Referral Date Meeting Date Action Taken 

Rules and City Gov’t 9/24/12 11/13/12 No action taken. 

 8 
9 

10 

11 

12 
13 
14 
15 

16 
17 
18 
19 

20 
21 

22 
23 
24 
25 
26 
27 
28 
29 

30 
31 
32 
33 
34 
35 
36 
37 

 
A CHARTER AMENDMENT concerning 

Municipal Elections Coinciding with State of Maryland Elections in 2018 and Onward 

FOR the purpose of amending the Charter of the City of Annapolis to establish the dates of 
the primary and general elections to coincide with the State of Maryland in 2018 and 
extending the length of time in office for the incoming City Council in December 2013 an 
additional year to December 2018 in order to facilitate this transition period. 

BY repealing and re-enacting with amendments the following portions of the City Charter: 
Article II, Section 2 
Article II, Section 5 

 

 SECTION I:  BE IT ESTABLISHED AND ORDAINED BY THE ANNAPOLIS CITY 
COUNCIL that the Charter of the City of Annapolis shall be amended to read as follows: 

Sec. 2. - General election dates.  
The citizens and residents of the City of Annapolis qualified to vote for members of the General 
Assembly of Maryland, and otherwise qualified by the registration and election laws for such 
cases made and provided, shall elect by ballot, every four (4) years, beginning in [1985] 2018, 
on the first Tuesday after the first Monday in November OR AS MAY BE DETERMINED BY 
THE STATE OF MARYLAND BOARD OF ELECTIONS, a mayor; and the qualified voters, in 
each ward shall at the same time elect by ballot one (1) resident of the ward as alderman.  
 
Sec. 5. - Primary election dates; municipal election dates; term dates.  
Nomination for a mayor and for one (1) alderman from each ward in the city shall be made by 
direct vote of the respective political parties at primary elections to be held in the city for the 
several candidates for mayor and, in each ward of the city, for the several candidates for 
aldermen, on the third Tuesday of September in each year in which municipal elections in the 
city are to be held OR AS MAY BE DETERMINED BY THE STATE OF MARYLAND BOARD 
OF ELECTIONS. Municipal elections shall be held on the first Tuesday after the first Monday in 
November in every fourth year, beginning with the year [1985] 2018 OR AS MAY BE 

Page 35



DETERMINED BY THE STATE OF MARYLAND BOARD OF ELECTIONS. However, in the 
event an election will occur on the same day as the public observance of a religious holiday, or 
in case of severe weather, the board of supervisors of elections shall have the authority to 
reschedule the election to a day within one week of the day prescribed by this section OR AS 
MAY BE DETERMINED BY THE STATE OF MARYLAND BOARD OF ELECTIONS. The mayor 
and aldermen elected at each municipal election shall qualify in the manner prescribed by 
Article II, Section 3 of this Charter, and shall take office on the first Monday in December of the 
year in which they are elected and shall hold office until the first Monday in December in the 
fourth year following, or until their successors are elected and qualify.  IN ORDER FOR 
MUNICIPAL ELECTIONS TO COINCIDE WITH STATE OF MARYLAND ELECTIONS, THE 
CITY COUNCIL TERM FOR THE CITY COUNCIL BEGINNING ON THE FIRST MONDAY OF 
DECEMBER 2013 WILL EXTEND AN ADDITIONAL YEAR TO THE FIRST MONDAY OF 
DECEMBER 2018. 

1 
2 
3 
4 
5 
6 
7 
8 
9 

10 
11 
12 
13 

14 
15 
16 
17 
18 
19 
20 
21 
22 
23 
24 
25 
26 
27 
28 
29 
30 
31 
32 
33 
34 
35 
36 
37 
38 
39 
40 
41 
42 
43 
44 
45 
46 
47 

 
 SECTION II:  AND BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED BY THE ANNAPOLIS CITY 
COUNCIL that the date of adoption of this Resolution is _____, 2012, and the amendments of 
the Charter of the City of Annapolis, hereby enacted shall become effective on _____, 2012, 
unless a proper petition for referendum hereon shall be filed as permitted by law within 40 days 
of adoption, provided a complete and exact copy of this Resolution shall be continuously posted 
on the bulletin board in the City Hall until _____, 2012, and provided further that a copy of the 
title of this Resolution shall be published in "The Capital", a newspaper of general circulation in 
the City of Annapolis, or in any other newspaper of such general circulation, once in each of the 
weeks on, _____, 2012, _______, 2012, _____, 2012, and _____, 2012. 
 
 SECTION III: AND BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED BY THE ANNAPOLIS CITY 
COUNCIL that the Mayor is hereby specifically commanded to carry out the provisions of 
Section II hereof, and, as evidence of such compliance, the Mayor shall cause to be maintained 
appropriate certificates of publication of the newspaper or newspapers in which the title of the 
Resolution shall have been published and if a favorable referendum is held on the Charter 
change, shall declare the Charter change hereby enacted to be effective on _____, 2012, by 
affixing his signature hereto in the space provided on the effective date of change. 
 
 SECTION IV:  AND BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED BY THE ANNAPOLIS CITY 
COUNCIL that as soon as the Charter Amendment hereby enacted shall become effective, 
either as provided herein or following a referendum, the Mayor shall send to the Maryland 
Department of Legislative Services a copy of this Resolution showing the number of Aldermen 
and Alderwomen voting for and against it and a report on the votes cast for or against the 
amendment hereby enacted at any referendum thereon and the date of such referendum. 
 
 The above Charter Amendment was enacted by the foregoing Resolution which was 
passed at a  Meeting of the Annapolis City Council on _____, 2012; _____ voting in the 
affirmative, ____ voting in the negative, _____ abstaining and _____ absent and the said 
Resolution becomes effective in accordance with law on the __ day of _____ 2012.  
 
 
 
 

ADOPTED this   day of   ,   . 48 
49 
50 

 
 

Page 36



 1 

ATTEST:  THE ANNAPOLIS CITY COUNCIL 

 BY  

Regina C. Watkins-Eldridge, MMC, City Clerk  Joshua J. Cohen, Mayor 

 2 
3 
4 
5 
6 

 
EXPLANATION 

CAPITAL LETTERS indicate matter added to existing law. 
[brackets] indicate matter stricken from existing law. 

Underlining indicates amendments.  7 

Page 37



Policy Report 1 
2 
3 
4 
5 
6 

7 
8 
9 

10 
11 
12 

13 
14 

15 
16 
17 
18 

19 
20 
21 
22 
23 
24 
25 

 
CA-2-12  

 
Municipal Elections Coinciding with State of Maryland Elections in 2018  

and Onward 

 
The proposed charter amendment would amend the Charter of the City of Annapolis to 
establish the dates of the primary and general elections to coincide with the State of 
Maryland in 2018 and extend the length of time in office for the incoming City Council in 
December 2013 an additional year to December 2018 in order to facilitate this transition 
period. 

The proposed charter amendment is based on the recommendation of the 2011 
Annapolis Charter Revision Commission that reported: 

“City elections should be moved to coincide with state elections.  There are two 
primary reasons for doing this.  First, it saves the City money to piggyback on the 
state elections.  Second, it will almost certainly improve voter turnout, which is 
now embarrassingly low in City elections.”  

 
   
 
 
 
 
Prepared by Jessica Cowles, Legislative and Policy Analyst, Office of Law at 
JCCowles@annpolis.gov or (410) 263-1184. 26 

27  

Page 38

mailto:JCCowles@annpolis.gov


Page 39



Page 40



CITY COUNCIL OF THE 1 

2 

3 
4 
5 
6 
7 

City of Annapolis 
 

Charter Amendment No. CA-3-12 
 

Introduced by: Alderman Pfeiffer at the Request of the Charter Revision Commission 
 

LEGISLATIVE HISTORY 
Legislative referrals are subject to City Council action at the time of introduction  

and are reflected in the City Council’s adopted minutes 

First Reading Public Hearing Fiscal Impact Note 90 Day Rule 

9/24/12 10/22/12 10/13/12 12/21/12 

Referred to Referral Date Meeting Date Action Taken 

Rules and City Gov’t 9/24/12 11/13/12 Favorable w/amd. 

 8 
9 

10 

11 

12 
13 
14 
15 

16 
17 
18 

19 
20 

21 

22 
23 
24 
25 

26 
27 
28 
29 
30 

31 
32 

33 

 
A CHARTER AMENDMENT concerning 

City Finance Requirements 

FOR the purpose of amending the Charter of the City of Annapolis to establish an unrestricted 
fund balance as part of the annual budget process, authorizing an Audit Committee; and 
setting a time line for the Finance Director to provide the Comprehensive Annual 
Financial Report to the City Council. 

BY adding to the following portions of the City Charter: 
Article VII, Section 12 

 

 SECTION I:  BE IT ESTABLISHED AND ORDAINED BY THE ANNAPOLIS CITY 
COUNCIL that the Charter of the City of Annapolis shall be amended to read as follows: 

ARTICLE VII FINANCES, SECTION 12 – REQUIREMENTS. 

A. AS PART OF THE ANNUAL BUDGET PROCESS, THE CITY COUNCIL SHALL 
ESTABLISH AN UNRESTRICTED FUND BALANCE AT A RATE IN LINE WITH BEST 
PRACTICES FOR MUNICIPAL CORPORATIONS WITH THE GOAL OF SECURING A TRIPLE 
A BOND RATING FROM THE CREDIT RATING AGENCIES. 

B. THE CITY COUNCIL SHALL AUTHORIZE THE ESTABLISHMENT OF AN AUDIT 
COMMITTEE CONSISTING OF THE MAYOR, CITY MANAGER, ALDERMEN AND 
ALDERWOMEN, FINANCE DIRECTOR AND CITY RESIDENT REPRESENTATIVE(S) WITH 
RESPONSIBILITY FOR IMPLEMENTING INDUSTRY-WIDE BEST FINANCIAL 
MANAGEMENT PRACTICES. 

C. THE FINANCE DIRECTOR SHALL REPORT THE COMPREHENSIVE ANNUAL 
FINANCIAL REPORT TO THE CITY COUNCIL BY JANUARY 31 OF EACH YEAR. 

 

Page 41



 SECTION II:  AND BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED BY THE ANNAPOLIS CITY 
COUNCIL that the date of adoption of this Resolution is _____, 2012, and the amendments of 
the Charter of the City of Annapolis, hereby enacted shall become effective on _____, 2012, 
unless a proper petition for referendum hereon shall be filed as permitted by law within 40 days 
of adoption, provided a complete and exact copy of this Resolution shall be continuously posted 
on the bulletin board in the City Hall until _____, 2012, and provided further that a copy of the 
title of this Resolution shall be published in "The Capital", a newspaper of general circulation in 
the City of Annapolis, or in any other newspaper of such general circulation, once in each of the 
weeks on, _____, 2012, _______, 2012, _____, 2012, and _____, 2012. 

1 
2 
3 
4 
5 
6 
7 
8 
9 

10 
11 
12 
13 
14 
15 
16 
17 
18 
19 
20 
21 
22 
23 
24 
25 
26 
27 
28 
29 
30 

 
 SECTION III: AND BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED BY THE ANNAPOLIS CITY 
COUNCIL that the Mayor is hereby specifically commanded to carry out the provisions of 
Section II hereof, and, as evidence of such compliance, the Mayor shall cause to be maintained 
appropriate certificates of publication of the newspaper or newspapers in which the title of the 
Resolution shall have been published and if a favorable referendum is held on the Charter 
change, shall declare the Charter change hereby enacted to be effective on _____, 2012, by 
affixing his signature hereto in the space provided on the effective date of change. 
 
 SECTION IV:  AND BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED BY THE ANNAPOLIS CITY 
COUNCIL that as soon as the Charter Amendment hereby enacted shall become effective, 
either as provided herein or following a referendum, the Mayor shall send to the Maryland 
Department of Legislative Services a copy of this Resolution showing the number of Aldermen 
and Alderwomen voting for and against it and a report on the votes cast for or against the 
amendment hereby enacted at any referendum thereon and the date of such referendum. 
 
 The above Charter Amendment was enacted by the foregoing Resolution which was 
passed at a  Meeting of the Annapolis City Council on _____, 2012; _____ voting in the 
affirmative, ____ voting in the negative, _____ abstaining and _____ absent and the said 
Resolution becomes effective in accordance with law on the __ day of _____ 2012.  
 

ADOPTED this   day of   ,   . 31 
32 
33 

 
 

ATTEST:  THE ANNAPOLIS CITY COUNCIL 

 BY  

Regina C. Watkins-Eldridge, MMC, City 
Clerk  Joshua J. Cohen, Mayor 

 34 
35 
36 
37 
38 

 
EXPLANATION 

CAPITAL LETTERS indicate matter added to existing law. 
[brackets] indicate matter stricken from existing law. 

Underlining indicates amendments.  39 

Page 42



Policy Report 1 
2 
3 
4 
5 

6 

7 
8 
9 

10 
11 

12 
13 

 
CA-3-12  

 
City Finance Requirements 

 

The proposed charter amendment would amend the Charter of the City of Annapolis to 
establish an unrestricted fund balance as part of the annual budget process, authorize 
the establishment of an Audit Committee, and set a time line of January 31 for the 
Finance Director to provide the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report to the City 
Council. 

 
Prepared by Jessica Cowles, Legislative and Policy Analyst, Office of Law at 
JCCowles@annpolis.gov or (410) 263-1184. 14 

Page 43

mailto:JCCowles@annpolis.gov


Page 44



Page 45



Page 46



CITY COUNCIL OF THE 1 

2 

3 

4 
5 
6 
7 

City of Annapolis 
 

Ordinance No. O-26-12 
 

Introduced by: Mayor Cohen 
 

LEGISLATIVE HISTORY 
Legislative referrals are subject to City Council action at the time of introduction  

and are reflected in the City Council’s adopted minutes 

First Reading Public Hearing Fiscal Impact Note 180 Day Rule 

7/23/12 11/26/12 9/14/12 1/21/13 

Referred to Referral Date Meeting Date Action Taken 

Rules and City Gov’t 7/23/12   

Planning Commission 7/23/12 10/4/12 Favorable 

 8 
9 

10 

11 
12 
13 

14 
15 
16 
17 
18 
19 

20 
21 

22 
23 
24 
25 
26 
27 
28 
29 
30 
31 
32 
33 
34 
35 
36 

AN ORDINANCE concerning 

Revisions to the Zoning Map Amendment Process 

FOR the purpose of amending Chapter 21.34 (Zoning Map Amendments) of the Annapolis 
City Code by establishing new procedures for local zoning map amendments, sectional 
zoning map amendments, and comprehensive zoning map amendments. 

BY repealing and re-enacting with amendments the following portions of the Code of the 
City of Annapolis, 2011 Edition 

 Section 21.34.020 
 Section 21.34.030 
 Section 21.34.040 
 

 SECTION I:  BE IT ESTABLISHED AND ORDAINED BY THE ANNAPOLIS CITY 
COUNCIL that the Code of the City of Annapolis shall be amended to read as follows: 

Chapter 21.34 - ZONING MAP AMENDMENTS 
 
21.34.010 - Purpose and authority. 
A. Purpose. For the purpose of promoting the public health, safety, morals and general welfare, 
and conserving the value of property throughout the City, the City Council, from time to time, in 
the manner set forth in this chapter may amend the district boundary lines; provided, that in all 
amendatory ordinances adopted under the authority of this chapter, due allowance shall be 
made for existing conditions, the conservation of property values, the direction of building 
development to the best advantages of the entire City and the uses to which property is devoted 
at the time of the adoption of the amendatory ordinance.  
 
B. Authority. The City Council shall decide amendments under this chapter, which may be 
proposed by the City Council, the Planning Commission, a property owner in the City or any 
person who has a contractual interest which may become a freehold interest or an exclusive 
possessory interest of property proposed to be rezoned.  

Page 47



21.34.020 - Procedures. 1 
2 
3 
4 
5 
6 
7 
8 
9 

10 
11 
12 
13 
14 
15 
16 
17 
18 
19 
20 
21 
22 
23 
24 
25 
26 
27 
28 
29 
30 
31 
32 
33 
34 
35 
36 
37 
38 
39 
40 
41 
42 
43 
44 
45 
46 
47 
48 
49 
50 
51 

A. Application Procedures.  AN APPLICATION MAY BE FILED FOR ANY OF THE 
FOLLOWING TYPES OF AMENDMENTS TO THE ZONING MAP:  
1. LOCAL ZONING MAP AMENDMENT. A LOCAL ZONING MAP AMENDMENT COVERING A 
SINGLE TRACT OF LAND, ALL OR PORTIONS OF WHICH MAY BE PROPOSED TO BE 
CLASSIFIED IN DIFFERENT ZONES.  A LOCAL ZONING MAP AMENDMENT APPLICATION 
MAY BE FILED BY ANY GOVERNMENTAL AGENCY OR BY A PERSON WITH A FINANCIAL, 
CONTRACTUAL, OR PROPRIETARY INTEREST IN THE PROPERTY TO BE AFFECTED BY 
THE PROPOSED AMENDMENT. 
 
Any member of the City Council may introduce a LOCAL zoning map application before the City 
Council that would then be referred to the Planning and Zoning Director to assist in the 
development of a LOCAL zoning map amendment. All other applications for a LOCAL zoning 
map amendment shall also be filed with the Planning and Zoning Director in accordance with 
the requirements of Section 21.10.010 Common procedures for review of applications, including 
the preapplication conference with the Director pursuant to Section 21.10.010(A).  
 
2. SECTIONAL ZONING MAP AMENDMENT. A SECTIONAL ZONING MAP AMENDMENT 
COVERING A SECTION OF THE CITY, ALL OR PORTIONS OF WHICH MAY BE PROPOSED 
TO BE CLASSIFIED IN DIFFERENT ZONES.  AN APPLICATION FOR A SECTIONAL 
ZONING MAP AMENDMENT MAY BE FILED ONLY BY THE PLANNING COMMISSION UPON 
COMPLETION OF A SECTOR OR AREA PLAN.  
 
3. COMPREHENSIVE ZONING MAP AMENDMENT. A COMPREHENSIVE ZONING MAP 
AMENDMENT COVERING THE ENTIRE CITY, ALL OR PORTIONS OF WHICH MAY BE 
PROPOSED TO BE CLASSIFIED IN DIFFERENT ZONES.  A COMPREHENSIVE ZONING 
MAP AMENDMENT INCLUDES, BUT IS NOT LIMITED TO, TECHNICAL CORRECTIONS.  AN 
APPLICATION FOR A COMPREHENSIVE ZONING MAP AMENDMENT MAY BE FILED ONLY 
BY THE PLANNING COMMISSION.   
 
B. Review Procedures. 
1. Complete Application Forwarded to Planning Commission. Upon determination of 
completeness, the Planning and Zoning Director shall forward the application to the Planning 
Commission, for its recommendation to the City Council.  
 
2. Staff Review and Report. The Planning and Zoning Director may circulate the application to 
other City departments deemed appropriate by the Director. The Planning and Zoning Director 
will forward a report on the application for amendment to the Planning Commission and the City 
Council.  
 
3. Planning Commission Public Hearing. An application, when complete, shall be placed upon 
the agenda of the Planning Commission for consideration at a public hearing. Notice of the 
hearing shall be published in accordance with Sections 21.10.020(B) and 21.10.020(C)[, Notice 
Requirements] FOR A LOCAL ZONING MAP AMENDMENT, AND IN ACCORDANCE WITH 
SECTION 21.10.020(C)(1) FOR A SECTIONAL OR COMPREHENSIVE ZONING MAP 
AMENDMENT. At the public hearing the Planning Commission may accept evidence and 
testimony as it may judge to be relevant to the proper consideration of the case.  
 
4. Findings and Recommendations. Within thirty days after the Planning Commission has 
completed its review of the application, but in no case longer than ninety days after the date of 
the first session of the public hearing held by the Commission, the Commission shall make 

Page 48



written findings of fact and shall submit the findings together with its recommendations to the 
City Council. The City Council shall not act upon the application until it has received a written 
report and recommendation from the Planning Commission on the proposed amendment.  

1 
2 
3 
4 
5 
6 
7 
8 
9 

10 
11 
12 
13 
14 
15 
16 
17 
18 
19 
20 
21 
22 
23 
24 
25 
26 
27 
28 
29 
30 
31 
32 
33 
34 
35 
36 
37 
38 
39 
40 
41 
42 
43 
44 
45 
46 
47 
48 
49 
50 
51 

 
5. City Council Action. After the Planning Commission has completed its review of the proposed 
amendment, an ordinance shall be drafted by the Mayor and introduced at the City Council. It 
shall be introduced on First Reader and referred to the appropriate Standing Committees of the 
City Council.  
 
6. City Council Public Hearing. The City Council shall hold a public hearing on the ordinance. 
The hearing shall be advertised, conducted, and a record of the proceedings shall be preserved, 
in the manner as the City Council, by rule, prescribes from time to time. Notice of the hearing 
shall be in accordance with Section 21.10.020(C)[, Notice Requirements] FOR A LOCAL 
ZONING MAP AMENDMENT AND IN ACCORDANCE WITH SECTION 21.10.020(C)(1) FOR A 
SECTIONAL OR COMPREHENSIVE ZONING MAP AMENDMENT. Other appropriate notices 
may be posted in a place or places as the City Council designates. At the hearing, the 
recommendation of the Planning Commission and report from the Planning and Zoning Director 
shall be placed in evidence. The Director of Planning and Zoning shall be available at the 
hearing for examination by all interested persons.  
 
7. Decision and Vote. Following the City Council public hearing and the Standing Committee 
reports, the City Council shall vote on the ordinance.  
 
8. Date of Decision. Whenever an application for an amendment has been properly filed, it shall 
be acted upon by the City Council within six months from the date of application, and whenever 
it has been denied by the City Council, the application shall not be renewed for one year after 
the denial.  
 
 
21.34.030 - Application requirements. 
All zoning map applications shall be accompanied by plans and on any forms prescribed by the 
Planning and Zoning Director, and shall at a minimum include the following:  
 
A. A statement in writing by the applicant and adequate evidence describing how the proposed 
map amendment conforms to the review criteria set forth in this chapter.  
 
B. FOR A LOCAL ZONING MAP AMENDMENT, Applicants shall provide the names and 
addresses of all persons having a financial or vested interest in the project and in the case of 
firms, partnerships and corporations, the names and addresses of all principals of the firm, 
partnership or corporation, who have a financial or vested interest in the project for which the 
application is made.  
 
 
21.34.040 - Planning Commission review criteria and findings. 
The Planning Commission shall not recommend the adoption of a proposed zoning map 
amendment unless it finds that the adoption of the amendment is in the public interest and is not 
solely for the interest of the applicant. The Planning Commission may recommend the adoption 
of an amendment changing the zoning classification of the property to a more restrictive district 
than that requested by the applicant. The Planning Commission shall make findings based upon 
the evidence presented to it in each specific case with respect to the following matters:  
 

Page 49



[A. Existing uses and zoning classification of properties within the general area of the property 
that is the subject of the application.] 

1 
2 
3 
4 
5 
6 
7 
8 
9 

10 
11 
12 
13 
14 
15 
16 
17 
18 
19 
20 
21 
22 

23 
24 
25 

26 

27 
28 
29 
30 

31 
32 
33 

[B. The suitability of the property in question to the uses permitted under the existing zoning 
classification compared to the uses permitted under the proposed zoning classification.]  
[C. The trend of development in the general area, including any changes in zoning classification 
of the subject property or other properties in the area and the compatibility with existing and 
proposed development for the area.]  
[D. Whether there has been a substantial change in the character of the neighborhood where 
the property is located or that there was a mistake in the existing zoning classification.]  
[E. The availability of public facilities, present and future transportation patterns.] 
[F. The relationship of the proposed amendment to the City's Comprehensive Plan.] 
 
A. POPULATION CHANGE;  
B. THE AVAILABILITY OF PUBLIC FACILITIES;  
C. PRESENT AND FUTURE TRANSPORTATION PATTERNS;  
D. COMPATIBILITY WITH EXISTING AND PROPOSED DEVELOPMENT FOR THE AREA;  
E. THE RELATIONSHIP OF THE PROPOSED AMENDMENT TO THE CITY’S 
COMPREHENSIVE PLAN; 
F. A SUBSTANTIAL AND UNANTICIPATED CHANGE IN THE CHARACTER OF THE 
NEIGHBORHOOD WHERE THE PROPERTY IS LOCATED;  
G. A MISTAKE IN THE EXISTING ZONING CLASSIFICATION. 
 

21.34.050 - City Council review criteria and findings.  
The City Council shall make findings of fact in each specific case including, but not limited to, 
the criteria set forth above in Section 21.34.040.  

 
21.34.060 - Appeal.  
Any person aggrieved by a decision of the City Council pursuant to this chapter may appeal to 
the circuit court of Anne Arundel County.  
 

 SECTION II:  AND BE IT FURTHER ESTABLISHED AND ORDAINED BY THE 
ANNAPOLIS CITY COUNCIL that this Ordinance shall take effect from the date of its passage. 
 

ADOPTED this   day of   ,   . 34 
35 
36 

 
 

ATTEST:  THE ANNAPOLIS CITY COUNCIL 

 BY  

Regina C. Watkins-Eldridge, MMC, City Clerk  Joshua J. Cohen, Mayor 

 37 
38 
39 
40 
41 

 
EXPLANATION 

CAPITAL LETTERS indicate matter added to existing law. 
[brackets] indicate matter stricken from existing law. 

Underlining indicates amendments.  42 

Page 50



Policy Report 1 
2 
3 
4 
5 

6 
7 
8 
9 

10 
11 
12 
13 
14 
15 
16 
17 
18 
19 
20 
21 
22 
23 
24 
25 
26 
27 
28 
29 
30 
31 
32 

 
O-26-12  

 
Revisions to the Zoning Map Amendment Process 

 
The proposed ordinance would amend Chapter 21.34 (Zoning Map Amendments) of the 
Annapolis City Code by establishing new procedures for local zoning map amendments, 
sectional zoning map amendments, and comprehensive zoning map amendments. 

 
Title 21 currently has no explicit mechanism for a comprehensive or sector area 
rezoning process. The proposed ordinance would authorize three types of zoning map 
amendments: local zoning map amendments, sectional zoning map amendments, and 
comprehensive zoning map amendments. 
 
The local zoning map amendment would preserve the existing procedure for a zoning 
change affecting a single tract of land.  The sectional zoning map amendment would 
apply to a portion of the City where rezoning was proposed following the completion of a 
sector or area plan.  An example would be an adopted neighborhood or corridor plan 
that recommended either a different zoning district or a re-alignment of existing zoning 
districts.  The comprehensive zoning map amendment would be a proposed rezoning 
affecting the entire city.  Examples would be if multiple zoning districts were combined 
into one zoning district or the use of Geographic Information Systems mapping 
technology to provide a technical update to the zoning maps (i.e., property zoning would 
not change, but the technological mechanism for physically displaying and storing the 
zoning information would be updated). 
 
 
 
 
 
Prepared by Sally Nash, Senior Comprehensive Planner, Planning and Zoning 
Department at SNash@annapolis.gov or (410) 263-7961 and Jessica Cowles, 
Legislative and Policy Analyst, Office of Law at 

33 
JCCowles@annpolis.gov or (410) 263-

1184. 
34 
35 

Page 51

mailto:SNash@annapolis.gov
mailto:JCCowles@annpolis.gov


Page 52



Rules Committee Amendments to O-26-12 
Revisions to the Zoning Map Amendment Process 

 
Amendment #1 
Page 2, Line 20: 
Strike “AN APPLICATION” and insert “A REQUEST”  
 
Amendment #2 
Page 2, Line 21: 
Strike “ONLY BY THE PLANNING COMMISSION” and insert “BY A MEMBER OF THE 
CITY COUNCIL OR THE DIRECTOR OF PLANNING AND ZONING”  
 
Amendment #3 
Page 2, Line 27 AND 28: 
Strike “AN APPLICATION” and insert “A REQUEST”  
 
Amendment #4 
Page 2, Lines 28-29: 
Strike “ONLY BY THE PLANNING COMMISSION” and insert:  “BY A MEMBER OF THE 
CITY COUNCIL OR THE DIRECTOR OF PLANNING AND ZONING.” 
 
Amendment #5 
Page 4, Lines 1-11:  
Restore the following text that is marked for deletion in the proposed legislation. 
A. EXISTING USES AND ZONING CLASSIFICATION OF PROPERTIES WITHIN THE 
GENERAL AREA OF THE PROPERTY THAT IS THE SUBJECT OF THE 
APPLICATION. 
B. THE SUITABILITY OF THE PROPERTY IN QUESTION TO THE USES PERMITTED 
UNDER THE EXISTING ZONING CLASSIFICATION COMPARED TO THE USES 
PERMITTED UNDER THE PROPOSED ZONING CLASSIFICATION. 
C. THE TREND OF DEVELOPMENT IN THE GENERAL AREA, INCLUDING ANY 
CHANGES IN ZONING CLASSIFICATION OF THE SUBJECT PROPERTY OR OTHER 
PROPERTIES IN THE AREA AND THE COMPATIBILITY WITH EXISTING AND 
PROPOSED DEVELOPMENT FOR THE AREA. 
D. WHETHER THERE HAS BEEN A SUBSTANTIAL CHANGE IN THE CHARACTER 
OF THE NEIGHBORHOOD WHERE THE PROPERTY IS LOCATED OR THAT THERE 
WAS A MISTAKE IN THE EXISTING ZONING CLASSIFICATION. 
E. THE AVAILABILITY OF PUBLIC FACILITIES, PRESENT AND FUTURE 
TRANSPORTATION PATTERNS. 
F. THE RELATIONSHIP OF THE PROPOSED AMENDMENT TO THE CITY'S 
COMPREHENSIVE PLAN. 
 
Page 4, Lines 13-21: 
Strike the proposed new language.  
A. POPULATION CHANGE; 
B. THE AVAILABILITY OF PUBLIC FACILITIES; 
C. PRESENT AND FUTURE TRANSPORTATION PATTERNS; 
D. COMPATIBILITY WITH EXISTING AND PROPOSED DEVELOPMENT FOR THE 
AREA; 
E. THE RELATIONSHIP OF THE PROPOSED AMENDMENT TO THE CITY’S 
COMPREHENSIVE PLAN; 
F. A SUBSTANTIAL AND UNANTICIPATED CHANGE IN THE CHARACTER OF THE 
NEIGHBORHOOD WHERE THE PROPERTY IS LOCATED; 
G. A MISTAKE IN THE EXISTING ZONING CLASSIFICATION. 

Page 53



Rules Committee Amendments to O-26-12 
Revisions to the Zoning Map Amendment Process 

 
Amendment #1 
Page 2, Line 20: 
Strike “AN APPLICATION” and insert “A REQUEST”  
 
Amendment #2 
Page 2, Line 21: 
Strike “ONLY BY THE PLANNING COMMISSION” and insert “BY A MEMBER OF THE 
CITY COUNCIL OR THE DIRECTOR OF PLANNING AND ZONING”  
 
Amendment #3 
Page 2, Line 27 AND 28: 
Strike “AN APPLICATION” and insert “A REQUEST”  
 
Amendment #4 
Page 2, Lines 28-29: 
Strike “ONLY BY THE PLANNING COMMISSION” and insert:  “BY A MEMBER OF THE 
CITY COUNCIL OR THE DIRECTOR OF PLANNING AND ZONING.” 
 
Amendment #5 
Page 4, Lines 1-11:  
Restore the following text that is marked for deletion in the proposed legislation. 
A. EXISTING USES AND ZONING CLASSIFICATION OF PROPERTIES WITHIN THE 
GENERAL AREA OF THE PROPERTY THAT IS THE SUBJECT OF THE 
APPLICATION. 
B. THE SUITABILITY OF THE PROPERTY IN QUESTION TO THE USES PERMITTED 
UNDER THE EXISTING ZONING CLASSIFICATION COMPARED TO THE USES 
PERMITTED UNDER THE PROPOSED ZONING CLASSIFICATION. 
C. THE TREND OF DEVELOPMENT IN THE GENERAL AREA, INCLUDING ANY 
CHANGES IN ZONING CLASSIFICATION OF THE SUBJECT PROPERTY OR OTHER 
PROPERTIES IN THE AREA AND THE COMPATIBILITY WITH EXISTING AND 
PROPOSED DEVELOPMENT FOR THE AREA. 
D. WHETHER THERE HAS BEEN A SUBSTANTIAL CHANGE IN THE CHARACTER 
OF THE NEIGHBORHOOD WHERE THE PROPERTY IS LOCATED OR THAT THERE 
WAS A MISTAKE IN THE EXISTING ZONING CLASSIFICATION. 
E. THE AVAILABILITY OF PUBLIC FACILITIES, PRESENT AND FUTURE 
TRANSPORTATION PATTERNS. 
F. THE RELATIONSHIP OF THE PROPOSED AMENDMENT TO THE CITY'S 
COMPREHENSIVE PLAN. 
 
Page 4, Lines 13-21: 
Strike the proposed new language.  
A. POPULATION CHANGE; 
B. THE AVAILABILITY OF PUBLIC FACILITIES; 
C. PRESENT AND FUTURE TRANSPORTATION PATTERNS; 
D. COMPATIBILITY WITH EXISTING AND PROPOSED DEVELOPMENT FOR THE 
AREA; 
E. THE RELATIONSHIP OF THE PROPOSED AMENDMENT TO THE CITY’S 
COMPREHENSIVE PLAN; 
F. A SUBSTANTIAL AND UNANTICIPATED CHANGE IN THE CHARACTER OF THE 
NEIGHBORHOOD WHERE THE PROPERTY IS LOCATED; 
G. A MISTAKE IN THE EXISTING ZONING CLASSIFICATION. 

Page 54



Page 55



Page 56



Page 57



FISCAL IMPACT NOTE   
 

Legislation No: O-26-12   First Reader Date: 7-23-12 
Note Date:    9-14-12 

 
Legislation Title:  Revisions to the Zoning Map Amendment Process 

 
 

Description:  For the purpose amending Chapter 21.34 (Zoning Map Amendments) of 
the Annapolis City Code by establishing new procedures for local zoning map 
amendments, sectional zoning map amendments, and comprehensive zoning map 
amendments. 
 
 
Analysis of Fiscal Impact:   
 
This legislation produces no significant fiscal impact. 

Page 58



CITY COUNCIL OF THE 1 

2 

3 

4 
5 
6 
7 

City of Annapolis 
 

Ordinance No. O-42-12 
 

Introduced by: Alderwoman Finlayson 
 

LEGISLATIVE HISTORY 
Legislative referrals are subject to City Council action at the time of introduction  

and are reflected in the City Council’s adopted minutes 

First Reading Public Hearing Fiscal Impact Note 90 Day Rule 

11/26/12 12/17/12 12/13/12 02/24/13 

Referred to Referral Date Meeting Date Action Taken 

Rules and City 
Government 

11/26/12   

 8 
9 

10 

11 

12 

13 
14 
15 
16 
17 
18 

19 

20 
21 
22 
23 

24 

25 

26 
27 

28 
29 
30 

AN ORDINANCE concerning 

 

Residency of Certain Department Directors 

FOR the purpose of amending the residency requirement for certain department directors. 

BY amending the following portion of the Code of the City of Annapolis, 2012 Edition: 
  
 2.04.060. 
  
 SECTION I:  BE IT ESTABLISHED AND ORDAINED BY THE ANNAPOLIS CITY 
COUNCIL that the Code of the City of Annapolis shall be amended to read as follows: 

2.04.060 – Residency of department directors. 

The department directors specified in this section shall reside either in the City or within a 
[fifteen] FIFTY-road-mile radius of the City's boundaries, except at the time of appointment or 
employment. The residence required by this section shall be established within three months of 
appointment or employment by the following department directors:  

A. Chief, Police Department; 

B. Chief, Fire Department; 

C. Director of Public Works. 
 

 SECTION II:  AND BE IT FURTHER ESTABLISHED AND ORDAINED BY THE 
ANNAPOLIS CITY COUNCIL that this Ordinance shall take effect from the date of its passage. 
 

ADOPTED this   day of   ,    . 31 
32 
33 

 
 

Page 59



ATTEST:  THE ANNAPOLIS CITY COUNCIL 

 BY  

Regina C. Watkins-Eldridge, MMC, City Clerk  Joshua J. Cohen, Mayor 

 1 
2 
3 
4 
5 
6 

 
 

EXPLANATION 
CAPITAL LETTERS indicate matter added to existing law. 

[brackets] indicate matter stricken from existing law. 
Underlining indicates amendments.  7 

8 
9 

 
 

Page 60



  
 

Policy Report 
 

O-42-12 
 

Residency of Certain Department Directors 
 
 This proposed ordinance would amend Section 2.04.060 of the Code of the City of 
Annapolis. Certain department directors would be required reside in the City or within a fifty-
road-mile radius of the City’s boundaries. The following department directors would be subject 
to the residency requirements proposed by this ordinance: 
 

A. Chief, Police Department 
B. Chief, Fire Department 
C. Director of Public Works 

 
MD. CODE ANN. POLITICAL SUBDIVISIONS ART., Sec. 1-107, et seq. (2012) allows political 

subdivisions to establish residency requirements for department heads or administrators that 
report directly to the elected executive or governing body of the political subdivision.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Prepared by Carol Richardson, Legislative and Policy Analyst in the Office of Law, (410) 263-
1184 or cdrichardson@annapolis.gov  
 
 

Page 61

mailto:cdrichardson@annapolis.gov


Page 62



FISCAL IMPACT NOTE 
 
 
First Reader Date: 11/26/12 Legislation No: O-42-12 

Note Date: 12/13/12 

 
Legislation Title:  Residency of Certain Department Directors 
 
Description:  For the purpose of amending the residency requirement for 
certain department directors by amending the following portion of the Code of 
the City of Annapolis, 2012 Edition. 
 
 
Analysis of Fiscal Impact:  This legislation will produce no significant fiscal 
impact. 

Page 63



CITY COUNCIL OF THE 1 

City of Annapolis 2 

 3 
Resolution No. R-1-13 4 

 5 
Introduced by: Alderman Pfeiffer 6 

 7 
LEGISLATIVE HISTORY 

Legislative referrals are subject to City Council action at the time of introduction  
and are reflected in the City Council’s adopted minutes 

First Reading Public Hearing Fiscal Impact Note 90 Day Rule 

1/14/13   4/14/13 

Referred to Referral Date Meeting Date Action Taken 

Transportation 1/14/13   

Transportation Board 1/14/13   

 8 
A RESOLUTION concerning 9 
 10 

Filing of Grant Application with the Mass Transit Administration 11 
 12 

FOR the purpose of authorizing the filing of an application with the Mass Transit Administration of 13 
the Maryland Department of Transportation for a Sections 5303, 5304, 5307, 5309, 5310, 14 
5311, 5316, and/or 5317 grants under the Federal Transit Act. 15 

 16 
WHEREAS, the Mass Transit Administration is the designated recipient in Maryland for grants 17 

under the Federal Transit Act; and 18 
 19 
WHEREAS, the Administrator of the Mass Transit Administration of the Maryland Department 20 

of Transportation is authorized to make grants to counties and to local 21 
governments for a mass transportation program of projects; and 22 

 23 
WHEREAS, the contract for financial assistance will impose certain obligations upon the 24 

applicant, including the provision by it of the local share of the project costs in the 25 
program; and 26 

 27 
WHEREAS, it is required by the United States Department of Transportation in accordance 28 

with the provisions of Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 that, in connection 29 
with the filing of an application for assistance under the Federal Transit Act, the 30 
applicant give an assurance that it will comply with Title VI of the Civil Rights Act 31 
of 1964 and the United States Department of Transportation requirements 32 
thereunder; and 33 

 34 
WHEREAS, it is the goal of the applicant that minority business enterprise be utilized to the 35 

fullest extent possible in connection with this project, and that definite procedures 36 
shall be established and administered to ensure that minority business shall have 37 
the maximum construction contracts, supplies, equipment contracts, or consultant 38 
and other services. 39 

Page 64



R-1-13  
Page 2

 
 1 
 2 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THE ANNAPOLIS CITY COUNCIL that the filing of the 3 
application referred to above is hereby endorsed. 4 
 5 
AND BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED BY THE ANNAPOLIS CITY COUNCIL that the City Council 6 
hereby endorses this resolution, thereby indicating approval thereof. 7 
 8 
AND BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED BY THE ANNAPOLIS CITY COUNCIL that a copy of this 9 
resolution be sent to the Mass Transit Administration of the Maryland Department of 10 
Transportation.   11 
 12 
 13 
 ADOPTED this ___ day of _______, 2013. 14 
 15 

ATTEST:  THE ANNAPOLIS CITY COUNCIL 

 BY  

Regina C. Watkins-Eldridge, MMC, City Clerk  Joshua J. Cohen, Mayor 

 16 
 17 

EXPLANATION 18 
CAPITAL LETTERS indicate matter added to existing law. 19 

[brackets] indicate matter stricken from existing law. 20 
Underlining indicates amendments.  21 

Page 65



R-1-13  
Page 3

 
Policy Report 

 
R-1-13 

 
Filing of Grant Application with the Mass Transit Administration 

 
The proposed resolution would endorse the filing of an application with the Mass Transit 
Administration of the Maryland Department of Transportation for a Section 5303, 5304, 
5307, 5309, 5310, 5311, 5316, and/or 5317 grant under the Federal Transit Act. 
 
 
 
 
 
Prepared by Jessica Cowles, Legislative and Policy Analyst in the City of Annapolis 
Office of Law at JCCowles@annapolis.gov or 410.263.1184.  
 

Page 66



FISCAL IMPACT NOTE   
 

Legislation No: R-1-13   First Reader Date: 1/14/13 
Note Date:            1/24/13  

 
Legislation Title:  Filing of Grant Application with the Mass Transit 
Administration 

 
 

Description:  For the purpose of authorizing the filing of an application with the Mass 
Transit Administration of the Maryland Department of Transportation for a Sections 5303, 
5304, 5307, 5309, 5310, 5311, 5316, and/or 5317 grants under the Federal Transit Act. 
 
 
Analysis of Fiscal Impact:  If awarded, this State grant can be expected to provide 
funding for about 20% of the FY2013 eligible operating costs of the Annapolis Department 
of Transportation, $416,000 in ADA operating assistance and $882,625 in operating 
assistance.  Additionally, the City can expect a grant for about 90% of the Department of 
Transportation’s eligible capital costs, amounting to about $645,000 for the same period.  
 

Page 67



CITY COUNCIL OF THE 1 

City of Annapolis 2 

 3 

Resolution No. R-3-13 4 
 5 

Introduced by: Alderman Pfeiffer 6 
 7 

LEGISLATIVE HISTORY 
Legislative referrals are subject to City Council action at the time of introduction  

and are reflected in the City Council’s adopted minutes 

First Reading Public Hearing Fiscal Impact Note 90 Day Rule 

2/11/13   5/10/13 

Referred to Referral Date Meeting Date Action Taken 

Economic Matters 2/11/13   

Historic Markers 2/11/13   

 8 
A RESOLUTION concerning 9 

Advocating for the City of Annapolis to be Named as the Home for a National Continental 10 
Congress Center 11 

FOR the purpose of expressing the sense of the City Council that the City of Annapolis be 12 
named as the home for a National Continental Congress Center. 13 

 14 

WHEREAS, events important to the founding of our Nation occurred in Annapolis, Maryland in 15 
the years between 1774-1789; and  16 

 17 
WHEREAS, Annapolis was the capital of the United States from November 26, 1783 to 18 

August 13, 1784, the first peacetime capital; and 19 
 20 
WHEREAS, the resignation of George Washington from the powerful position of General of 21 

the Continental Army that established civilian government took place in 22 
Annapolis on December 23, 1783; and 23 

 24 
WHEREAS, President Thomas Mifflin signed the Treaty of Paris Proclamation, ending the war 25 

for independence by ratifying the Treaty of Paris, in Annapolis on January 14, 26 
1784; and 27 

 28 
WHEREAS, President Thomas Mifflin appointed Thomas Jefferson as Minister to France on 29 

May 7, 1784 during the time Congress met in Annapolis; and  30 
 31 
WHEREAS, Annapolis sent Samuel Chase to represent the State of Maryland at the Mount 32 

Vernon Conference in March of 1785; and 33 
 34 
WHEREAS, the Annapolis Convention at Mann’s Tavern from September 11-14, 1786 35 

initiated the national meetings that would continue in Philadelphia in 1787 to write 36 
the Constitution; and 37 

Page 68



R-3-13 
Page 2 

 1 
WHEREAS, a committee of citizens known as the National Continental Congress Center 2 

Founders’ Association, a project of the Annapolis Continental Congress Society, 3 
is dedicated to bringing all of the stories of the Nation’s formative years (1774-4 
1789) and the documents and conventions such as the Articles of Confederation, 5 
the Treaty of Paris and its Proclamation, and the 1786 Convention, that took 6 
place before the Constitution but were critical to the founding of this republic; and  7 

 8 
WHEREAS, a National Continental Congress Center with exhibits, public forums and 9 

interactive, interpretive, historical experiences will educate the public about this 10 
time in our history and provide an historical bridge between the National 11 
Constitution Center in Philadelphia, Pennsylvania and the new George 12 
Washington Presidential Library at Mount Vernon, Virginia; and 13 

 14 
WHEREAS, a National Continental Congress Center in Annapolis will invigorate an 15 

understanding of this Nation’s beginnings and the important role Annapolis has 16 
played in its history. 17 

 18 
 19 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THE ANNAPOLIS CITY COUNCIL that the Council 20 
applauds and supports the efforts of the Annapolis Continental Congress Society to establish a 21 
National Continental Congress Center in Maryland’s Capital City and so direct that this 22 
resolution be forwarded to Governor Martin O’Malley, President of the Senate Mike Miller and 23 
Speaker of the House Michael Busch to be shared with Maryland State Legislators and to 24 
Maryland’s Congressional Delegation. 25 
 26 
 27 

ADOPTED this   day of   ,   . 28 
 29 
 30 

ATTEST:  THE ANNAPOLIS CITY COUNCIL 

 BY  

Regina C. Watkins-Eldridge, MMC, City Clerk  Joshua J. Cohen, Mayor 

 31 
 32 
 33 
 34 
 35 

EXPLANATION 36 
CAPITAL LETTERS indicate matter added to existing law. 37 

[brackets] indicate matter stricken from existing law. 38 
Underlining indicates amendments.  39 

 40 

Page 69



 
Policy Report 

 
R-3-13 

 
Advocating for the City of Annapolis to be Named as the Home for a National 

Continental Congress Center 

 
The proposed resolution would express the sense of the City Council that the City of 
Annapolis be named as the home for a National Continental Congress Center. 

 
 
 
Prepared by Jessica Cowles, Legislative and Policy Analyst in the City of Annapolis 
Office of Law at JCCowles@annapolis.gov or 410.263.1184.  

 

Page 70



CITY COUNCIL OF THE 1 

City of Annapolis 2 

 3 

Resolution No. R-7-13 4 
 5 

Introduced by: Mayor Cohen 6 
 7 

LEGISLATIVE HISTORY 
Legislative referrals are subject to City Council action at the time of introduction  

and are reflected in the City Council’s adopted minutes 

First Reading Public Hearing Fiscal Impact Note 90 Day Rule 

2/11/13   5/10/13 

Referred to Referral Date Meeting Date Action Taken 

Rules and City Gov’t 2/11/13   

Transportation 2/11/13   

Planning Commission N/A 1/3/13 Favorable 

Transportation Board 2/11/13   

 8 
A RESOLUTION concerning 9 

Wayfinding and Signage Master Plan  10 

FOR the purpose of adopting the Draft Wayfinding and Signage Master Plan as an addendum 11 
to the 2009 Annapolis Comprehensive Plan.  12 

 13 

WHEREAS, the Maryland Annotated Code, Land Use Article, Title 3, requires municipalities 14 
to adopt comprehensive plans, which are to include policies, statements, goals, 15 
and interrelated plans for private and public land use, transportation, and 16 
community facilities, and which are to be documented in texts and maps that 17 
constitute the guide for future development; and 18 

 19 
WHEREAS, the Annapolis City Council adopted successive comprehensive plans for the 20 

City in 1975, 1985, 1998, and 2009; and 21 
 22 

WHEREAS, on October 5, 2009 the Annapolis City Council adopted the 2009 Annapolis 23 
Comprehensive Plan pursuant to R-32-09 Amended; and  24 

 25 
WHEREAS, the City of Annapolis received a grant from the Baltimore Metropolitan Council 26 

to improve its wayfinding and signage for vehicles, pedestrians, and bicyclists.  27 
Building on previous efforts, the Wayfinding and Signage Master Plan includes 28 
an inventory of existing wayfinding signage, preferred location and content for a 29 
comprehensive program of wayfinding signs, and a comprehensive wayfinding 30 
analysis that recommends future wayfinding technologies and strategies that 31 
will benefit the City; and 32 

 33 

Page 71



R-7-13 
Page 2 

WHEREAS, one of the goals of the 2009 Annapolis Comprehensive Plan was to improve 1 
circulation, accessibility, and mobility in the City by focusing on travel demand 2 
management.  One component of a travel demand management program is 3 
marketing materials that inform people about travel choices; and  4 

 5 
WHEREAS, better wayfinding has long been a key recommendation made by many groups 6 

who look at parking and transportation in Annapolis.  There have been previous 7 
efforts to improve wayfinding in the City; however, this is the first time that there 8 
has been a broad perspective that includes many different technologies and a 9 
comprehensive framework of analysis. 10 

 11 
WHEREAS, the proposed wayfinding system will: 1) help the City be flexible in adapting to 12 

emerging wayfinding technologies; 2) aid in the creation of a cohesive program 13 
of placemaking and wayfinding that identifies gateways, cultural districts, City 14 
landmarks, and public services; and 3) influences travel behavior and promotes 15 
multi-modal travel options. 16 

 17 
WHEREAS, public input into the Wayfinding and Signage Master Plan involved the 18 

formation of a 10-person steering committee, including the Executive Director 19 
of the Four Rivers Heritage Area; the president & CEO of the Annapolis & Anne 20 
Arundel County Conference & Visitors Bureau; the president & CEO of the 21 
Annapolis Economic Development Corporation; the architect for the United 22 
States Naval Academy; and City staff from the Departments of Transportation, 23 
Public Works, Finance-MIT, and Planning and Zoning.  Stakeholder interviews 24 
over a two-day period in May 2012 and an open house in August 2012 25 
completed the public input process; and 26 

 27 
WHEREAS,   the Planning Commission has recommended to the City Council the adoption 28 

of a Wayfinding and Signage Master Plan as an addendum to the 2009 29 
Annapolis Comprehensive Plan and transmitted the Draft Wayfinding and 30 
Signage Master Plan to the Annapolis City Council on February 7, 2013; and  31 

 32 
WHEREAS, the Wayfinding and Signage Master Plan, if adopted by the City Council by 33 

passage of this Resolution, shall constitute an addendum to the 2009 34 
Annapolis Comprehensive Plan which sets forth goals and a guide for future 35 
development; and 36 

 37 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE ANNAPOLIS CITY that the Draft Wayfinding 38 
and Signage Master Plan is available online at: 39 
http://www.annapolis.gov/Government/Departments/PlanZone/Wayfinding.aspx and is hereby 40 
adopted; and 41 
 42 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED BY THE ANNAPOLIS CITY COUNCIL that the Wayfinding and 43 
Signage Master Plan be, and the same hereby, made part of the 2009 Annapolis 44 
Comprehensive Plan. The Plan shall be known as the “Wayfinding and Signage Master Plan.” 45 
 46 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED BY THE ANNAPOLIS CITY COUNCIL that the adoption of the 47 
Wayfinding and Signage Master Plan shall not be construed as an approval of individual 48 
projects that may be recommended therein, and that the Annapolis City Council reserves the 49 
right to consider, debate, oppose, or support specific actions that may come before the Council 50 
and that are intended to implement specific elements of the Plan. 51 

Page 72



R-7-13 
Page 3 

 1 
 2 

ADOPTED this   day of   ,   . 3 
 4 
 5 

ATTEST:  THE ANNAPOLIS CITY COUNCIL 

 BY  

Regina C. Watkins-Eldridge, MMC, City Clerk  Joshua J. Cohen, Mayor 

 6 
 7 
 8 
 9 
 10 

EXPLANATION 11 
CAPITAL LETTERS indicate matter added to existing law. 12 

[brackets] indicate matter stricken from existing law. 13 
Underlining indicates amendments.  14 

 15 

Page 73



 
Policy Report 

 
R-7-13 

 
Wayfinding and Signage Master Plan  

 
The proposed resolution would adopt the Draft Wayfinding and Signage Master Plan as 
an addendum to the 2009 Annapolis Comprehensive Plan.  One of the goals of the 
2009 Annapolis Comprehensive Plan was to improve circulation, accessibility, and 
mobility in the City by focusing on travel demand management.  One component of a 
travel demand management program is marketing materials that inform people about 
travel choices. 

 
Better wayfinding has long been a key recommendation made by many groups who 
look at parking and transportation in Annapolis.  There have been previous efforts to 
improve wayfinding in the City; however, this is the first time that there has been a 
broad perspective that includes many different technologies and a comprehensive 
framework of analysis.  The proposed wayfinding system will: 1) help the City be flexible 
in adapting to emerging wayfinding technologies; 2) aid in the creation of a cohesive 
program of placemaking and wayfinding that identifies gateways, cultural districts, City 
landmarks, and public services; and 3) influences travel behavior and promotes multi-
modal travel options. 
 
 
Prepared by Sally Nash, Senior Planner in the Department of Planning and Zoning at 
SNash@annapolis.gov or 410.263.7961 and Jessica Cowles, Legislative and Policy 
Analyst in the City of Annapolis Office of Law at JCCowles@annapolis.gov or 
410.263.1184.  

Page 74



CITY COUNCIL OF THE 1 

City of Annapolis 2 

 3 

Resolution No. R-8-13 4 
 5 

Introduced by: Alderman Pfeiffer 6 
 7 

LEGISLATIVE HISTORY 
Legislative referrals are subject to City Council action at the time of introduction  

and are reflected in the City Council’s adopted minutes 

First Reading Public Hearing Fiscal Impact Note 90 Day Rule 

2/11/13   5/10/13 

Referred to Referral Date Meeting Date Action Taken 

Economic Matters 2/11/13   

Alcoholic Beverage 
Control Board 

2/11/13   

 8 
A RESOLUTION concerning 9 

Expressing Support for House Bill 145 and Senate Bill 244 – Refillable Container 10 
Alcoholic Beverage License in the City of Annapolis 11 

FOR the purpose of expressing the Annapolis City Council’s support of House Bill 145 and 12 
Senate Bill 244 before the General Assembly regarding an alcoholic beverage license 13 
component for refillable containers for holders of Class A (package goods) and Class D 14 
(taverns) alcoholic beverage licenses. 15 

 16 

WHEREAS, Senator Astle and Delegate George have introduced legislation in the General 17 
Assembly that would create in the City of Annapolis a refillable container 18 
license to sell draft beer for consumption off the licensed premises; and 19 

 20 
WHEREAS, HB 145 and SB 244 respond to the growing popularity of limited editions of 21 

micro-brewed beer and provide environmental benefits by requiring fewer cans 22 
and bottles by re-using refillable containers; and 23 

 24 
WHEREAS, the refillable container license would be a component of an existing Class A 25 

(package goods) or Class D (taverns) alcoholic beverage license; and 26 
 27 

WHEREAS, the refillable container would have a capacity of less than 32 ounces and not 28 
more than 128 ounces; and 29 

 30 
WHEREAS, HB 145 and SB 244 would establish an annual license fee of $500 for an 31 

applicant whose alcoholic beverage license does not have an off-sale privilege; 32 
and 33 

 34 

Page 75



R-8-13 
Page 2 

WHEREAS, HB 145 and SB 244 would establish an annual license fee of $50 for an 1 
applicant whose alcoholic beverage license does have an off-sale privilege; 2 
and 3 

 4 

WHEREAS, there are currently 17 Class A alcoholic beverage license holders and 1 Class 5 
D alcoholic beverage license holder in the City of Annapolis. 6 

 7 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THE ANNAPOLIS CITY COUNCIL that R-8-13 8 
expresses the support of House Bill 145 and Senate Bill 244 before the General Assembly 9 
regarding an alcoholic beverage license component for refillable containers for holders of Class 10 
A (package goods) and Class D (taverns) alcoholic beverage licenses. 11 

 12 
 13 
AND, BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED BY THE ANNAPOLIS CITY COUNCIL that copies of this 14 
Resolution shall be sent to the Anne Arundel County Executive, the Anne Arundel County 15 
Council, the Governor of Maryland, the President of the Senate, the Speaker of the House of 16 
Delegates, and the District 30 General Assembly delegation. 17 
 18 
 19 

ADOPTED this   day of   ,   . 20 
 21 
 22 

ATTEST:  THE ANNAPOLIS CITY COUNCIL 

 BY  

Regina C. Watkins-Eldridge, MMC, City Clerk  Joshua J. Cohen, Mayor 

 23 
 24 
 25 
 26 
 27 

EXPLANATION 28 
CAPITAL LETTERS indicate matter added to existing law. 29 

[brackets] indicate matter stricken from existing law. 30 
Underlining indicates amendments.  31 

 32 

Page 76



 
Policy Report 

 
R-8-13 

 
Expressing Support for House Bill 145 and Senate Bill 244 – Refillable Container 

Alcoholic Beverage License in the City of Annapolis 

 
The proposed resolution would express the Annapolis City Council’s support of House 
Bill 145 and Senate Bill 244 before the General Assembly regarding an alcoholic 
beverage license component for refillable containers for holders of Class A (package 
goods) and Class D (taverns) alcoholic beverage licenses. 

 
 
 
Prepared by Jessica Cowles, Legislative and Policy Analyst in the City of Annapolis 
Office of Law at JCCowles@annapolis.gov or 410.263.1184.  

 

Page 77



CITY COUNCIL OF THE 1 

City of Annapolis 2 

 3 

Resolution No. R-9-13 4 
 5 

Introduced by: Mayor Cohen and Alderman Pfeiffer 6 
 7 

LEGISLATIVE HISTORY 
Legislative referrals are subject to City Council action at the time of introduction  

and are reflected in the City Council’s adopted minutes 

First Reading Public Hearing Fiscal Impact Note 90 Day Rule 

2/11/13   5/10/13 

Referred to Referral Date Meeting Date Action Taken 

Rules and City Gov’t 2/11/13   

 8 
A RESOLUTION concerning 9 

Municipal Elections Coinciding with State of Maryland Elections 10 

FOR the purpose of expressing the sense of the Annapolis City Council that the City elections 11 
for Mayor, Aldermen and Alderwomen, and City Central Committees should be adjusted 12 
to coincide with State gubernatorial elections, and that the City should request that the 13 
State authorize, by executive or legislative action as appropriate, inclusion of the City 14 
elections on the same ballot used for State of Maryland gubernatorial elections.  15 

 16 

WHEREAS, proposed Charter Amendment CA-2-12 was introduced on September 24, 17 
2012 and legislative action is pending before the Annapolis City Council; and 18 

WHEREAS, proposed Charter Amendment CA-2-12 would amend the Charter of the City of 19 
Annapolis to establish the dates of the City’s primary and general elections to 20 
coincide with the State of Maryland gubernatorial elections; and 21 
 22 

WHEREAS, only the State of Maryland, by authorization through executive or legislative 23 
action, may permit inclusion of the City elections on the same ballot used for 24 
State of Maryland gubernatorial elections. 25 

 26 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THE ANNAPOLIS CITY COUNCIL that this 27 
resolution expresses the sense of the Annapolis City Council that the City elections for Mayor, 28 
Aldermen and Alderwomen, and City Central Committees should be adjusted to coincide with 29 
State gubernatorial elections, and that the City should request that the State authorize, by 30 
executive or legislative action as appropriate, inclusion of the City elections on the same ballot 31 
used for State of Maryland gubernatorial elections. 32 

 33 
 34 
AND, BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED BY THE ANNAPOLIS CITY COUNCIL that copies of this 35 
Resolution shall be sent to the Anne Arundel County Executive, the Anne Arundel County 36 

Page 78



R-9-13 
Page 2 

Council, the Governor of Maryland, the President of the Senate, the Speaker of the House of 1 
Delegates, and the District 30 General Assembly delegation. 2 
 3 
 4 

ADOPTED this   day of   ,   . 5 
 6 
 7 

ATTEST:  THE ANNAPOLIS CITY COUNCIL 

 BY  

Regina C. Watkins-Eldridge, MMC, City Clerk  Joshua J. Cohen, Mayor 

 8 
 9 
 10 
 11 
 12 

EXPLANATION 13 
CAPITAL LETTERS indicate matter added to existing law. 14 

[brackets] indicate matter stricken from existing law. 15 
Underlining indicates amendments.  16 

 17 

Page 79



 
Policy Report 

 
R-9-13 

 
Municipal Elections Coinciding with State of Maryland Elections 

 
The proposed resolution would express the sense of the Annapolis City Council that the 
City elections for Mayor, Aldermen and Alderwomen, and City Central Committees 
should be adjusted to coincide with State gubernatorial elections, and that the City 
should request that the State authorize, by executive or legislative action as 
appropriate, inclusion of the City elections on the same ballot used for State of Maryland 
gubernatorial elections. 

 

 
 
 
Prepared by Jessica Cowles, Legislative and Policy Analyst in the City of Annapolis 
Office of Law at JCCowles@annapolis.gov or 410.263.1184.  

 

Page 80



Page 81


	2-11-13
	January Meeting Minutes
	2-11-13 Public Hearing
	O-1-13 Exempt Emp
	O-1-13 Fiscal Impact Note
	CA-2-12 Elections
	CA-2-12 Rules
	CA-2-12 Fiscal Impact Note
	CA-3-12 Finance
	CA-3-12 Rules and Finance
	CA-3-12 Fiscal Impact Note
	O-26-12 Zoning Amendments
	O-26-12 Rules
	O-26-12 Rules Amendment
	O-26-12 Planning Commission
	O-26-12 Fiscal Impact Note
	O-42-12 Residency Requirements Dept Dir
	O-42-12 Rules
	O-42-12 Fiscal Impact Note
	R-1-13 MTA Grant
	R-1-13  Fiscal Impact Note
	R-3-13 Continental Congress Center
	R-7-13 Wayfinding Plan
	R-8-13 Refillable Container License
	R-9-13 State Election
	2-11-13 Budget Transfer



